REGULAR COUNCIL
MEETING AGENDA

APRIL 26, 2017
10:00 A.M.

CouNcIL CHAMBERS
FORT VERMILION, AB

P.O. Box 640, 4511-46 Avenue, Fort Vermilion, AB TOH 1NO
P: (780) 927-3718 |Toll Free: 1-877-927-0677 | F: (780) 927-4266
www.mackenziecounty.com | office@mackenziecounty.com






MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Wednesday, April 26, 2017
10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

AGENDA
Page
CALL TO ORDER: 1. a) Call to Order
AGENDA: 2. a) Adoption of Agenda
ADOPTION OF 3. a) Minutes of the April 11, 2017 Regular Council 7
PREVIOUS MINUTES: Meeting
b) Minutes of the April 13, 2017 Special Council 23
Meeting
DELEGATIONS: 4. a)
b)
COUNCIL 5. a) Council Committee Reports (verbal)
COMMITTEE
REPORTS: b) Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes 27
C) Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 31
d)
GENERAL 6. a)
REPORTS:
b)
TENDERS: 7. a) Fire Truck Tanker — Request for Proposal 45
b) Flood Control Erosion Repair — Request for 53

Proposal (11:00 a.m.)



PUBLIC HEARINGS:

ADMINISTRATION:

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

COMMUNITY
SERVICES:

FINANCE:

OPERATIONS:

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

None

One to One Ratio of Regulation

Caribou Update (to be presented at the meeting)

2017 Operating and Capital Budgets
Bylaw 1064-17 — 2017 Tax Rate Bylaw

2016 Audited Financial Statement and Financial
Information Return (DRAFTS)

Policy PW009 Dust Control

Administration Vehicle Replacement

Northwest Species at Risk Funding Request

55

57

107

115

141

149

151



UTILITIES:

INFORMATION /
CORRESPONDENCE:

IN CAMERA
SESSION:

NOTICE OF MOTION:

NEXT MEETING
DATES:

ADJOURNMENT:

15.

17.

18.

19.

20.

b)

Information/Correspondence

Legal
Labour

Land
e Gravel Negotiations

Regular Council Meeting

May 9, 2017

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

Regular Council Meeting

May 24, 2017

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

Adjournment

153






Agenda Item # 3. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: April 26, 2017
Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Director of Legislative & Support Services
Title: Minutes of the April 11, 2017 Regular Council Meeting

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Minutes of the April 11, 2017, Regular Council Meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

Approved Council Meetings minutes are posted on the County website.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the minutes of the April 11, 2017, Regular Council Meeting be adopted as
presented.

Author:  C. Gabriel Reviewed by: CG CAOQ:




PRESENT:

REGRETS:

ADMINISTRATION:

ALSO PRESENT:

Minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on April 11, 2017 in the

MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, April 11, 2017

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

Bill Neufeld

Lisa Wardley
Jacquie Bateman
Peter F. Braun
Elmer Derksen
John W. Driedger
Eric Jorgensen
Josh Knelsen
Walter Sarapuk
Ray Toews

Len Racher
Byron Peters
Doug Munn
Fred Wiebe
Karen Huff
Dave Fehr
Bill Kostiw

Grant Smith
Carol Gabriel

Reeve

Deputy Reeve

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Councillor (arrived at 10:04 a.m.)
Councillor

Councillor

Councillor

Chief Administrative Officer

Director of Planning & Development
Director of Community Services
Director of Utilities

Director of Finance

Director of Operations
Intergovernmental Relations & Special
Projects Coordinator

Agricultural Fieldman

Director of Legislative & Support
Services/Recording Secretary

Members of the Public and the Media
Grade 6 Students — Blue Hills Community School & Hill Crest

Community School

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers.

CALL TO ORDER:

1.a) Callto Order

Reeve Neufeld called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m.



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

AGENDA:

MOTION 17-04-239

ADOPTION OF

PREVIOUS MINUTES:

MOTION 17-04-240

COUNCIL
COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

MOTION 17-04-241

Page 2 of 14

Ms. Megan McKnight's grade six class from Hill Crest
Community School and Mr. Jody Vey’s grade six class from Blue
Hills Community School were present to observe the Council
meeting.
The students held an election for the position of Junior Reeve.
Karen Froese was elected the Junior Reeve and took a seat next
to the Reeve.
2.a) Adoption of Agenda
MOVED by Councillor Braun
That the agenda be approved with thesfollowing additions or
changes:

Move the Finance items 16 11:00 a.m.

Move the Planning & Development items to 1:30 a.m.

13. b) Dust Control Applicatiens

17. a) Legal — Capital*Rreject Negotiations
CARRIED

3.a) Minutes of the March 29, 2017 Regular Council
Meeting

Councillordorgensen arrived at 10:04 a.m.
MOWVED by Councillor Sarapuk

I hat the minutes of the March 29, 2017, Regular Council
Meeting be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

5.a) Council Committee Reports

MOVED by Councillor Driedger
That the Council committee reports be received for information.
CARRIED

5.b) Community Services Committee Meeting Minutes



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

MOTION 17-04-242

MOTION 17-04-243

MOTION 17-04-244

GENERAL REPORTS:

MOTION 17-04-245

DELEGATIONS:

Page 3 of 14

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That the unapproved minutes of the March 27, 2017 Community
Services Committee Meeting be received for information.

CARRIED
5.¢) Land Stewardship Committee Meeting Minutes
MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the Land Stewardship Committee meeting minutes of
March 17, 2017 be received for information.

CARRIED
5.d) Finance Committee Megting Minutes
MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the Finance Committee, unapproved meeting minutes of
March 1, 2017 andsMareh 27, 2017 be received for information.

CARRIED

6.a) CAO Report

MOVEDby, Councillor Sarapuk

Thatthe CAO report for March 2017 be received for information.
CARRIED

4.a) Grade 6 Students — Blue Hills Community School &
Hill Crest Community School

The grade six students were given an opportunity to present
guestions to Council.

1. How many people come to these meetings?
Councillors and administration. Some members of the
public also attend.

2. How long have you been the Reeve?
Been on Council for 37 years.

3. When did all this start?

10



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

TENDERS:

MOTION 17-04-246

MOTION 17-04-247

MOTION 17-04-248

Page 4 of 14

The Improvement District (ID) was formed in 1948.

4. Will there be a bigger gym in Blue Hills?
That will depend on funding from the School Division.
Once a project is approved it could take a couple of years
to complete.

5. What is the best part of being a Councillor?
Making sure that our people and our industry are being
represented. Being thanked for doing something right.
Seeing a project completed.

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 10:45 a.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 10:59 a.m.

7.a) Crack Filling — Request foriQuotation
7.b) Line Painting — Requestfor Quotation
MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk

That the Crack Fillimg,-‘Reqguest for Quotation submissions be
opened.

CARRIED
MOVED by/Councillor Driedger

That,the Line Painting - Request for Quotation submissions be
opened.

CARRIED

Quotations Received for Line Painting:

GRM Inc. $134,675.30
Marshall Lines $89,276.54
Lafrentz Road Markings $111,336.32
Triple A Striping $85,243.75
Line West Ltd. $70,296.15

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That the 2017 Line Painting contract be awarded to the lowest
qualified bidder while staying within budget.

11



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

MOTION 17-04-249

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION 17-04-250

MOTION 17-04-251

MOTION 17-04-250

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION 17-04-252
Requires 2/3

Page 5 of 14

CARRIED

Quotations Received for Crack Filling:

Triple A Striping $99,202.55
829659 Alberta Ltd. $179,763.40
Marshall Lines $80,518.10

MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the 2017 Crack Filling contract be awarded to the lowest
qualified bidder while staying within budget.

CARRIED

8.a) None

9.a) First Nations Consultatien Session
MOVED by Councillor knelsen

That the First Natigfs, Censultation Session in Edmonton on April
26, 2017 be receivedfarinformation.

MOVED hy.Caeuncillor Jorgensen

That the Fitst Nations Consultation Session in Edmonton on April
26, 201 Z’be, TABLED to later in the meeting.

DEFEATED

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the First Nations Consultation Session in Edmonton on April
26, 2017 be received for information and that administration
formulates a written submission for review by Council.

CARRIED

9. b) Advertising

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That Mackenzie County purchases a print subscription to The

Echo/Pioneer for each household and that the advertising budget
be amended to include an additional $13,000 with funding

12



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

FINANCE:

MOTION 17-04-253
Requires 2/3

MOTION 17-04-254

FINANCE:

MOTION 17-04-255

MOTION 17-04-256

MOTION 17-04-257

Requires Unanimous

Page 6 of 14

coming from the General Operating Reserve.

CARRIED

12. a) Bylaw 1064-17 2017 Tax Rate Bylaw

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That first reading be given to Bylaw 1064-17 being the 2017 Tax
Rate bylaw for Mackenzie County as AMENDED with last year’s
rates and minimum tax rates.

CARRIED

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That administration bring back optionsyforan additional sub-class
under residential for lots too smallsto legally develop.

CARRIED

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 11:59 a.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 12:32 p.m. with all members present
with the exception of Councillor Toews and Councillor
Jorgensen.

12. b) Bylaw 1065-17 Tax Penalties Bylaw

MOVED by Councillor Braun

I hat first reading be given to Bylaw 1065-17 being the tax
penalties bylaw for Mackenzie County.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Derksen

That second reading be given to Bylaw 1065-17 being the tax
penalties bylaw for Mackenzie County.

CARRIED
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That consideration be given to go to third reading of Bylaw 1065-
17 being the tax penalties bylaw be TABLED to after item 12. C).

13



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

FINANCE:

MOTION 17-04-258

MOTION 17-04-259

MOTION 17-04-260

Requires Unanimous

MOTION 17-04-261

FINANCE:

MOTION 17-04-262

FINANCE:

MOTION 17-04-263

Page 7 of 14

CARRIED
12. c) Policy FINO32 Tax Penalty Notification
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That Policy FINO32 Tax Penalty Notification be approved as
presented.

CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk

That consideration to go to third reading of Bylaw 1065-17 be
brought back onto the table.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That consideration be (givenito go to third reading of Bylaw 1065-
17 being the tax penalties hylaw for Mackenzie County at this
meeting.

CARRIED _ UNANIMOUSLY

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That,third reading be given to Bylaw 1065-17 being the tax
penalties bylaw for Mackenzie County as AMENDED to include
reference to Policy FINO32 Tax Penalty Notification.

CARRIED

12. d) Policy RESV08 Recreation and Parks Reserve
MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That Policy RESV08 Recreation and Parks Reserve be amended
as presented.

CARRIED
12. e) ATB US Dollar Savings Account Closure

MOVED by Councillor Braun

14



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION 17-04-264

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION 17-04-265

ADMINISTRATION:

MOTION 17-04-266

DELEGATION:

MOTION 17-04-267

Page 8 of 14

That administration be authorized to close the US Dollar Sub-
Account with ATB Financial and transfer the remaining amount
of $570.74 USD to the County’s chequing account with ATB
Financial.

CARRIED

9.c¢) Tri-Council Meeting — Agenda Items

Councillor Toews rejoined the meeting at 12:54 p.m.

Councillor Jorgensen rejoined the meeting at 12:55 p.m.

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the following agenda items befadded to the Tri-Council
meeting agenda for May 3, 201¢"

e Forestry (burners, power)
e Regional Utility Supply

CARRIED

9.d) FCM’s Legalefense Fund

MOVED by,Cauncillor Sarapuk

That the veluntary invoice for the Federation of Canadian
Municipalities Legal Defense Fund be paid in the amount of
$268.89.

CARRIED

9.e) Caribou Update

MOVED by Councillor Driedger

That the caribou update be received for information.
CARRIED

4.b) Danny Friesen — Variance Request for Layer Hen Barn

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen

That the variance request by Danny Friesen and Tara Warkentin
for the Confined Feed Operation for the layer hen barn (Permit

15



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

UTILITIES:

DELEGATION:

MOTION 17-04-268

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

MOTION 17-04-269

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

MOTION 17-04-270
Requires 2/3

Page 9 of 14

Number FA17001) be approved and that the maximum layer
hens allowed be set at 12,000.

CARRIED

15. b) 01-SUB-17 Sewer Easement Request on Plan 142
5000, Block 5, Lot 2

4.c) James Rosenberger, James Rosenberger — 01-SUB-17
Sewer Easement Request on Plan 142 5000, Block 5,
Lot 2

MOVED by Councillor Toews

That the sewer easement request ongRlan 142 5000, Block 5, Lot
2 be approved as per Option 3a présented and the attached
map.

CARRIED

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 2:03 p.m. and

reconvened the meeting,at 2:13 p.m. with all members present

with the exception, of/Councillor Jorgensen.

14. a) Bylaw™063-17 Partial Road Closure at Fort Vermilion
Teuck FilhStation Plan 112 0425, Block 2, Lot 1 (Fort
Vermilion Rural)

MOVED by Councillor Braun

I hat first reading be given to Bylaw 1063-17 being a Road

Closure Bylaw to close a portion of Road Plan 3884PX for the

purpose of consolidation, subject to public hearing input.

CARRIED

Councillor Jorgensen rejoined the meeting at 2:15 p.m.

14. b) La Crete Community Streetscape Implementation
Committee — La Crete Main Street Beautification

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley
That the $18,227 from the La Crete Main Street Beautification be

reallocated to the La Crete Streetscape Implementation
Committee budget.

16



MACKENZIE COUNTY

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, April 11, 2017

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

MOTION 17-04-271

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

MOTION 17-04-272

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

MOTION 17-04-273

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

MOTION 17-04-274

Page 10 of 14

CARRIED

14. c) Regional Safety Codes Discussion

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That administration continue to attend the upcoming Regional
Safety Code discussions to receive more information on this
initiative.

CARRIED

14. d) Fort Vermilion Airport Name Change and Fly In Event

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That Mackenzie County suppotts the community of Fort
Vermilion as they publically reeggnize the name change of Fort
Vermilion Airport to Wop May Memorial Airport; by financially
and voluntarily contributing towards this summer’s re-naming
event up to a maximum,of $6,000 with funding coming from the
general operating budget.

CARRIED

10. a)yPolicy ASB013 Beaver Control

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen
That Policy ASB013 Beaver Control be approved with the
following amendments:

e Day Rate — up to a maximum of two days
e Travel - $0.54 per km

CARRIED

10. b) Policy ASB014 Pest Control

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That Policy ASB014 Pest Control be amended as presented.

17



MACKENZIE COUNTY

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

Tuesday, April 11, 2017

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

MOTION 17-04-275

COMMUNITY
SERVICES:

MOTION 17-04-276

MOTION 17-04-277

MOTION 17-04-278

OPERATIONS:

MOTION 17-04-279
Requires 2/3

Page 11 of 14

CARRIED

10. ¢) Policy ASB021 Weed Control

MOVED by Councillor Knelsen
That Policy ASB021 Weed Control be approved as presented.
CARRIED

11. a) Playground Equipment Tender

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the $50,000 Playground Expansiengoroject at Knelsen Park
be increased to $95,000 in the 2047 Capital Budget, with
$45,000 in funding coming from a‘denation from Knelsen Sand &
Gravel Ltd.

CARRIED

MOVED by Deputy'Reeve Wardley

That MagkenziexCounty accepts the $5,000 donation in kind from
Knelsen Sand & Gravel Ltd. for the shelter project at Knelsen
Park.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the Community Services Committee be authorized to open
the Playground Equipment Tenders, and bring a
recommendation to Council for awarding.

CARRIED

13. a) Sand & Salt Shelter — Fort Vermilion

MOVED by Councillor Braun
That the budget be amended to include an additional $35,000 for

the FV — Sand & Salt Shelter (CF) with funding coming from the
General Capital Reserve for a total project budget of $235,000.

18



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

OPERATIONS:

MOTION 17-04-280

Requires Unanimously

MOTION 17-04-281

UTILITIES:

MOTION 17-04-282

MOTION 17-04-283

Page 12 of 14

CARRIED

13. b) Dust Control Applications (ADDITION)

MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk

That an additional $25,000 be added to the dust control budget
with funding coming from the General Operating Reserve.

CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY

MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That Policy PW009 Dust Control be ffought back for review.
CARRIED

Councillor Jorgensen and«Counciller Driedger stepped out of the
meeting at 2:55 p.m.

15. a) Bylaw 1058-1¥ being a bylaw to Rescind Bylaw 904-13
— Local Improvement Bylaw — Water and Sewer
Extension on43 Avenue and a portion of 50 Street in
thesHamiet of Fort Vermilion

MOVED by,Councillor Bateman

Thatysecond reading be given to Bylaw 1058-17 being a bylaw to
rescind Bylaw 904-13 - Local Improvement Bylaw — Water and
Sewer Extension on 43 Avenue and a portion of 50 Street in the
Hamlet of Fort Vermilion.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That third reading be given to Bylaw 1058-17 being a bylaw to
rescind Bylaw 904-13 - Local Improvement Bylaw — Water and
Sewer Extension on 43 Avenue and a portion of 50 Street in the
Hamlet of Fort Vermilion.

CARRIED

Councillor Driedger and Councillor Jorgensen rejoined the
meeting at 2:57 p.m.

19



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

INFORMATION:

MOTION 17-04-284

MOTION 17-04-285

IN-CAMERA SESSION:

MOTION 17-04-286

MOTION 17-04-287

NOTICE OF MOTION:

NEXT MEETING
DATES:

Page 13 of 14

Councillor Knelsen stepped out of the meeting 2:57 p.m. and
rejoined the meeting at 2:58 p.m.

16. a) Information/Correspondence
MOVED by Deputy Reeve Wardley

That the information/correspondence items be received for
information.

CARRIED

MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That a delegation be sent to the Peace River Regional District on
April 27, 2017 in Dawson Creeksto diseuss the species at risk in
the Wood Buffalo Reserve andnorthern BC.

CARRIED

Reeve Neufeld recessed the meeting at 3:23 p.m. and
reconvened the meeting at 3:30 p.m.

17. In-Camera Session
MOVED by/Councillor Toews
That,Council move in-camera to discuss issues under the
kreedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Regulations 18
(Lhat 3:31 p.m.
17. a) Legal — Capital Projects Negotiations
17. a) Labour
17.a) Land
CARRIED
MOVED by Councillor Sarapuk
That Council move out of camera at 3:57 p.m.

CARRIED

18. a) None

19. a) Committee of the Whole Meeting
April 25, 2017

20



MACKENZIE COUNTY
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
Tuesday, April 11, 2017

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION 17-04-288

Page 14 of 14

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
C) Regular Council Meeting

April 26, 2017

10:00 a.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers

20. a) Adjournment
MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen
That the council meeting be adjourned at 3:57 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval@on, April 26, 2017.

Bill Neufeld
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

21



OPTION 3a

22




Agenda Item # 3. b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: April 26, 2017
Presented By: Carol Gabriel, Director of Legislative & Support Services
Title: Minutes of the April 13, 2017 Special Council Meeting

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Minutes of the April 13, 2017, Special Council Meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

Approved Council Meetings minutes are posted on the County website.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the minutes of the April 13, 2017, Special Council Meeting be adopted as
presented.

Author:  C. Gabriel Reviewed by: CG CAOQ:

23



PRESENT:

ABSENT:

ADMINISTRATION:

ALSO PRESENT:

MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

Thursday, April 13, 2017

1:00

p.m.

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
Fort Vermilion, Alberta

Bill Neufeld

Lisa Wardley
Jacquie Bateman
Peter F. Braun
John W. Driedger
Eric Jorgensen
Josh Knelsen
Ray Toews

Elmer Derksen
Walter Sarapuk

Len Racher
Byron Peters
Caitlin Smith

Reeve
Deputy Reeve
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Councillor
Councillor

Chief Administrative Officer
Director of Planning & Development
Development Officer/Recording Secretary

Minutes of the Special Council meeting for Mackenzie County held on April 13, 2017 in the
Fort Vermilion Council Chambers.

CALL TO ORDER:

AGENDA:

MOTION 17-04-289

ADOPTION OF

1.a) Callto Order

Reeve Neufeld called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.

2.a) Adoption of Agenda

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the agenda be approved as presented.

CARRIED

3.a) None

PREVIOUS MINUTES:

24



MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
Thursday, April 13, 2017

DELEGATIONS:

COUNCIL
COMMITTEE
REPORTS:

GENERAL REPORTS:

TENDERS:

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

ADMINISTRATION:

AGRICULTURE
SERVICES:

COMMUNITY
SERVICES:

FINANCE:

OPERATIONS:

PLANNING &
DEVELOPMENT:

MOTION 17-04-290

UTILITIES:

INFORMATION:

IN-CAMERA SESSION:

NOTICE OF MOTION:

NEXT MEETING
DATES:

Page 2 of 3

4.a) None

5.a) None

6.a) None
7.a) None
8.a) None
9.a) None

10. a) None

11. a) None

12. a) None

13. a) None

14. a) Bylaw 1066-17 Land Use Bylaw

MQVED/byDeputy Reeve Wardley

Thatfirst reading be given to Bylaw 1066-17 being the Land Use
Bylaw for Mackenzie County as amended, subject to public
hearing input.

CARRIED

15. a) None

16. a) None

17. None

18. a) None

19. a) Committee of the Whole Meeting
April 25, 2017
10:00 a.m.

25



MACKENZIE COUNTY
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
Thursday, April 13, 2017

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION 17-04-291

Page 3 of 3

Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
C) Regular Council Meeting
April 26, 2017
10:00 a.m.
Fort Vermilion Council Chambers
20. a) Adjournment
MOVED by Councillor Jorgensen

That the special council meeting be adjourned at 3:30 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes will be presented to Council for approval opfAprih2642017.

Bill Neufeld
Reeve

Len Racher
Chief Administrative Officer

26



Agenda Item # 5. b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting:

Meeting Date:

Presented By:

Title:

Regular Council Meeting

April 26, 2017

Dave Fehr, Director of Operations

Public Works Committee Unapproved Minutes

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The unapproved minutes of the April 10, 2017 meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority

[0 Requires 2/3

O

Requires Unanimous

That the Public Works Committee unapproved minutes of April 10, 2017 be received for
information.

Author:

S Wheeler

Reviewed by:

CAO:

27




PRESENT:

MACKENZIE COUNTY
Public Works Committee Meeting

April 10, 2017

10:00 a.m.

La Crete, Conference Room

Bill Neufeld

Josh Knelsen
John W. Driedger
Jacquie Bateman
Peter Braun

ADMINISTRATION:Len Racher

OTHERS:

CALL TO ORDER:

AGENDA:

MOTION PW-17-04-013

MINUTES:

MOTION PW-17-04-014

DELEGATIONS:

Dave Fehr
Willie Schmidt
Grant Smith
Sylvia Wheeler
Madison Dyck

Trent McLaughlin

MINUTES

Reeve

Councillor, Chair

Councillor, Vice Chair (tele-conference)
Councillor

Councillor

Chief Administrative Officer

Director of Operations

Manager of Fleet Maintenance
Agricultural Field Man

PW Admin Officer/Recording Secretary
Admin Assistant

T&L Engineering

1.a) Callto Order

Chair Knelsen called the meeting to order at 10:00 p.m.

2.a)

Adoption of Agenda

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the agenda be adopted as presented.

CARRIED

3.a) Adoption of Minutes from March 6, 2017

MOVED by Councillor Bateman

That the minutes from March 6, 2017 Public Works Committee be
adopted as presented.

CARRIED

4. a) NONE

28



NEW BUSINESS:

MOTION PW-17-04-015

MOTION PW-17-04-016

MOTION PW-17-04-017

Page 2 of 3

5.a) 2016 Roads to New Lands Presentation

Trent McLaughlin has been hired by Mackenzie County to assist
with the process of building roads. Trent assists the landowners with
understanding the layout of the land and what is needed throughout
the process of the road construction.

Trent presented the roads from 2016 that have been applied for and
completed or ongoing. The presentation was complete with photos
and drone captured video.

Chair Knelsen recessed the meeting at 11:03 and reconvened at
11:13.

Lost connection with Councillor Driedger at 11:32.
MOVED by Councillor Braun
That the presentation be accepted for information.

CARRIED

5.b) Vehicle Purchase Options

Connected with Councillor Driedger at 11:53.

MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the % Ton trucks be purchased from True North Ford.
CARRIED

MOVED by Reeve Neufeld

That the recommendation to Council be to add $4,000 to the Capital
Budget for SUV’s replacement coming from Vehicle & Equipment
Reserve so that 2 %2 Ton trucks can be purchased rather than 2

SUV'’s from True North Ford.

CARRIED

5.c) Gravel Truck

Administration gave an update on the search for a gravel truck. As
of yet there is not an available used truck to purchase with the
amount of dollars we have to spend. Administration will continue
looking.

29



MOTION PW-17-04-018

MOTION PW-17-04-019

MOTION PW-17-04-020

INFORMATION /
CORRESPONDANCE:

NEXT MEETING

DATE:

ADJOURNMENT:

MOTION PW-17-04-021

Page 3 of 3

MOVED by Councillor Bateman
That the update be received for information.

CARRIED

5.d) Road Bans

Lost connection with Councillor Driedger at 12:12
MOVED by Reeve Neufeld

That Road Bans be at the discretion of the CAO.

CARRIED

5.e) Residential Yard Clean-Up

MOVED by Councillor Braun
That the Treasure Hunt be May 17" and the Yard Clean-up be May
18" and Administration inquire about the other transfer stations

accepting white goods on those days and that Mackenzie County
pays for the white goods drop off on those days.

6.a) None
7. Next meeting — At the Call of the Chair

8. Adjournment
MOVED by Councillor Braun

That the Public Works Committee Meeting be adjourned at
12:25 p.m.

CARRIED

These minutes were adopted at meeting.

Josh Knelsen, Chair

Dave Fehr, Director of Operations

30



Agenda Iltem # 5. ¢)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: April 26,2017
Presented By: Byron Peters, Director of Planning & Development
Title: Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

The minutes of the April 6, 2017 Municipal Planning Commission meeting are attached.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

N/A

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION:

N/A

Author:  B. Peters Reviewed by: CAOQ:

31



RECOMMENDED ACTION:

M  Simple Majority O Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the Municipal Planning Commission meeting minutes of April 6, 2017 be received
for information.

Author:  B. Peters Reviewed by: CAOQ:

32



MACKENZIE COUNTY
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, April 6, 2017

MACKENZIE COUNTY
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Mackenzie County Office
La Crete, AB

Thursday, April 6, 2017 @ 10:00 a.m.

PRESENT: John W. Driedger Chair, Councillor, MPC Member
Erick Carter Vice Chair, MPC Member
Jacquie Bateman Councillor, MPC Member
Jack Eccles MPC Member
Beth Kappelar MPC Member (via teleconference)
ADMINISTRATION: Byron Peters Director of Planning and Development
Liane Lambert Planner
Caitlin Smith Development Officer
Lynda Washkevich Administrative Assistant/Recording Secretary
MEMBERS OF David K Froese
PUBLIC
MOTION 1. CALL TO ORDER

John W. Driedger called the meeting to order at 10:03 a.m.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

MPC-17-04-036 MOVED by Beth Kappelar
That the agenda be adopted with the addition of the following item:
6. e.) 39-SUB-16 La Crete Golf Course
Rural Country Residential “RC3”
Plan 092 6283, Block 2, Lot 3
(La Crete Rural)
CARRIED
3. MINUTES

a) Adoption of Minutes

MPC-17-04-037 MOVED by Erick Carter

That the minutes of March 16, 2017 Municipal Planning

33



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 2 of 12

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Thursday, April 6, 2017

MPC-17-04-038

MPC-17-04-039

Commission meeting be adopted as presented.
CARRIED

b) Business Arising from Previous Minutes

None.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE

MOVED by Jacquie Bateman
That the terms of reference be received for information.
CARRIED

5. DEVELOPMENT

a) 051-DP-17 Wilson Auto & RV Ltd.
Automotive & Equipment Repair, Major
(Automotive Sales)

Hamlet Industrial 2 “HI2” (La Crete)
Plan 022 7658, Block 21, Lot 01

MOVED by Jacquie Bateman

That Development Permit 051-DP-17 on Plan 022 7658, Block 21, Lot 01
in the name of Wilson Auto & RV Ltd. be APPROVED with the following
conditions:

Failure to comply with one or more of the attached conditions shall render
this permit Null and Void

1. This permit approval is for the operation of an Automotive &
Equipment Repair, Major (Automotive Sales) out of the existing
building.

2. This permit approval is subject to approval from the Alberta Motor
Vehicle Industry Council (AMVIC). The developer is required to obtain
written approval from the Alberta Motor Vehicle Industry Council
regarding the proposed development prior to commencement of the
development. Failure to do so shall render this permit Null and Void.

3. All conditions and requirements by the Alberta Motor Vehicle Industry
Council “AMVIC” are to be met to their specifications and standards.

4. This permit may be revoked at any time if, in the opinion of the
Development Officer, the proposed development has become

34



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 3 of 12
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, April 6, 2017

detrimental, unsightly or otherwise incompatible with the
amenities of the neighbourhood.

5. No vehicle shall be located in such a way that it impedes visibility
for vehicular and/or pedestrian traffic.

6. The Automotive Equipment and Vehicle Services Business shall meet
all Alberta Safety Code requirements and any other requirements
specified by Superior Safety Codes. Failure to do so shall render this
permit Null and Void.

7. The municipality has assigned the following address to the noted
property 9401 — 98™ Street. You are required to display the address
(9401) to be clearly legible from the street and be on a contrasting
background. The minimum size of the characters shall be four inches
in height.

8. This permit approval is subject to the access to the property being
constructed to County standards. PRIOR to installation of a new
access or changing location of existing access, complete a Request
for Access form by contacting the Operational Services Department
for Mackenzie County at 780-928-3983. Access to be constructed at
the developers’ expense.

9. The sign shall be located a minimum of:

a. 20 meters from regulatory signs, and
b. Not less than 1.5 meters from the curb/sidewalk.

10.The sign shall be placed on site and is not permitted to be placed
on any County lands and/or road rights-of-way.

11.The sign shall be a minimum of 2 meters in height from the bottom of
the sign above the curb/sidewalk.

12.The site and sign shall be kept in a safe, clean, and tidy condition, or
may be required to be renovated or removed.

13.The sign shall:

a. Not obstruct the orderly and safe flow of vehicular and pedestrian

traffic,

b. Not unduly interfere with the amenities of the district,

c. Not materially interfere with or affect the use, enjoyment or value of
neighbouring properties, and

d. Not create visual or aesthetic blight.

14. lllumination of the sign must not negatively affect, nor pose a safety
hazard to, an adjacent site or street.

15.Wiring and conduits of the sign must be concealed from view.

35



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 4 of 12

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Thursday, April 6, 2017

MPC-17-04-040

MPC-17-04-041

16.The total site area (lot) shall have a positive surface drainage without
adversely affecting the neighbouring properties.

17.No construction or development is allowed on a right-of-way. It is the
responsibility of the developer/owner/occupant to investigate the utility
rights-of-way, if any, that exist on the property prior to commencement
of any construction and to ensure that no construction or development
is completed on any utility right-of-way.

18.The Developer shall at all times comply with all applicable Federal,
Provincial and Municipal legislation and regulations and County Bylaws
and resolutions relating to the development of the lands.

CARRIED

6) SUBDIVISION

a) 05-SUB-17 George Froese
Heart to Heart Ministry Centre
La Crete General Commercial “GC1” (La Crete)
C of T SW 11-106-15- W5M

MOVED by Jacquie Bateman

That the Municipal Planning Commission recommend to
Council to look at assessed values on properties within the municipality.

CARRIED
MOVED by Beth Kappelar

That Subdivision Application 05-SUB-17 in the name of Heart to Heart
Ministries (George Froese) on C of T SW 11-106-15-W5M be
APPROVED with the following conditions:

1. This approval is for a TYPE B single lot subdivision, approximately
2.44 acres (0.99 hectares) in size.

2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a Development
Agreement with the Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not
limited to:

a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the
developer shall obtain a development permit from the
Municipality.

b) Provision of access to both the subdivision and the

balance of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County
standards at the developer’s expense.

36



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 5 of 12
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, April 6, 2017

I.  The new access shall be located on Range Road
152 and adhere to the minimum distance
requirements from all intersections.

c) Provision of municipal servicing (water and sanitary sewer)
to each lot,

d) Any outstanding property taxes shall be paid in full prior to
registration of title,

e) Provision of off-site levies as required by the County as
follows:

) Subdivision Off-Site Levies (Bylaw 319/02) are
imposed for the construction and maintenance of off-
site municipal services, including:

a) new or expanded facilities for the storage,
transmission, treatment or supplying of water;

b) new or expanded facilities for the treatment,
movement or disposal of sanitary sewage;

Cc) new or expanded storm sewage drainage
facilities;

d) new or expanded facilities for the storage,
transfer, or disposal of waste;

e) land required for or in connection with any
facilities described in clauses (a) to (d); and

f)  ongoing maintenance of the facilities described
in clauses (a) to (d).

The levy is calculated at $1,000.00 per lot. 1 lot at
$1,000 equals $1,000.00,

Total Levies = $1,000.00

f) Security, in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit or
certified cheque, in the amount of 25% of subsurface and
surface infrastructure construction cost must be submitted
to the County prior to installation and construction of any
permanent infrastructure. Security amounts required in
accordance with Mackenzie County’s Multi-Lot/Urban
Subdivision Construction and Registration Policy No,
DEVO0O03.

g) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to

37



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Thursday, April 6, 2017

MPC-17-04-042

CARRIED

h)

)

Page 6 of 12

discuss the requirements for your subdivision.

Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO
Electric, Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.

Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or
easements as required by utility companies. The
Developer shall be responsible for any line relocation or
correction costs that occur as a result of this development.
Responses from utilities companies are shown in Schedule
“C” hereto attached.

Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or
resulting from the water tables and any other water
problems as a result of any low land levels of the
proposed development. It is the responsibility of the
developer to ensure that adequate drainage and other
precautions are taken to avoid water seepage into the
dwellings/basement and/or flooding of the basement,
and/or any ancillary buildings.

b) 06-SUB-17 David K Froese
Lake Side Real Estate Inc.
La Crete Highway Commercial District “HC2” (La Crete)
NE 11-106-15-W5M

MOVED by Erick Carter

That Subdivision Application 06-SUB-17 in the name of Lake Side Real
Estate Inc. on NE 11-106-15-W5M be APPROVED with the following

conditions:

1. This approval is for a single commercial lot subdivision, 18.55 acres
(7.51 hectares) parcels in size.

2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a Development
Agreement with the Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not
limited to:

a) Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the

developer shall obtain a development permit from the
Municipality.

b) Provision of access to both the subdivision and the

38



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 7 of 12
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, April 6, 2017

balance of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County
standards at the developer’'s expense.

I.  The subdivision and remainder of the quarter shall
use the existing access off the La Crete North
access. The first 50 meters shall be upgraded to
Mackenzie County Standards.

c) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015.

d) Provision of municipal reserve in the form of money in
lieu of land. Specific amount is based on 10% of the
subject land and on the current market value. The
current market value for this property is $10,781.67 per
acre. Municipal reserve is charged at 10%, which is
$1,078.17 per subdivided acre. 18.55 acres times
$1,078.17 equals $20,000.00.

——e

e) The Developer has the option to provide a market
value appraisal of the existing parcel of land as of a
specified date occurring within the 35-day period
following the date on which the application for
subdivision approval is made in accordance to the
Municipal Government Act Section 667 (1) (a).

f) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to
discuss the requirements for your subdivision.

g) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration.

h) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO
Electric, Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.

i) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or
easements as required by utility companies. The
Developer shall be responsible for any line relocation or
correction costs that occur as a result of this development.
Responses from utilities companies are shown in Schedule
“C” hereto attached.

]) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or
resulting from the water tables and any other water
problems as aresult of any low land levels of the
proposed development. It is the responsibility of the
developer to ensure that adequate drainage and other
precautions are taken to avoid water seepage into the
dwellings/basement and/or flooding of the basement,

39



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Thursday, April 6, 2017

MPC-17-04-043

CARRIED

Page 8 of 12

and/or any ancillary buildings.

David K Froese left at 10:25 a.m.

c) 07-SUB-17 Rueben & Eva Dyck
Agricultural *A”
SE 9-107-14-W5M

MOVED by Jacquie Bateman

That Subdivision Application 07-SUB-17 in the name of Rueben Dyck and
Eva Dyck on SE 9-107-14-W5M be APPROVED with the following

conditions.

1. This approval is for a SUBDIVISION boundary adjustment from 5
acres (2.02 hectares) to a total of 10 acres (4.04 hectares).

2. Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a Development
Agreement with the Mackenzie County which shall contain, but is not

limited to:

a)

b)

d)

f)

Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the
developer shall obtain a development permit from the
Municipality.

Provision of access to both the subdivision and the
balance of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie County
standards at the developer’s expense.

All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015.

I.  The existing pumpout sewer shall be relocated
5.18 meters from the road allowance to meet
setback requirements. Proof of relocation shall be
provided. This shall be completed prior to
registration of the subdivision at Alberta Land
Titles.

Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to
discuss the requirements for your subdivision.

Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration.

Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO

40



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Thursday, April 6, 2017

MPC-17-04-044

g)

h)

CARRIED

Page 9 of 12

Electric, Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.

Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or
easements as required by utility companies. The
Developer shall be responsible for any line relocation or
correction costs that occur as a result of this development.
Responses from utilities companies are shown in Schedule
“C” hereto attached.

Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or
resulting from the water tables and any other water
problems as a result of any low land levels of the
proposed development. It is the responsibility of the
developer to ensure that adequate drainage and other
precautions are taken to avoid water seepage into the
dwellings/basement and/or flooding of the basement,
and/or any ancillary buildings.

d) 08-SUB-17 Greg Wiebe
Rural Country Residential 1 “RC1”
NW 35-105-15-W5M

MOVED by Jack Eccles

That Subdivision Application 08-SUB-17 in the name of Gregory J. Wiebe
on NW 35-105-15-W5M be APPROVED with the following conditions:

a)

b)

d)

This approval is for a single Country Residential
SUBDIVISION 4.39 +- acres (1.77 hectares) in size.

Applicant/developer shall enter into and abide by a
Development Agreement with the Mackenzie County
which shall contain, but is not limited to:

Prior to any development on the proposed subdivision, the
developer shall obtain a development permit from the
Municipality.

Provision of access to both the subdivision and the
balance of the lands in accordance with Mackenzie
County standards at the developer’s expense.

The lot shall be connected to the rural water line located

on the east side of NW 35-105-15-W5M in accordance to
Bylaw 909-13.

41



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 10 of 12
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, April 6, 2017

f) All sewage disposals shall conform to the Alberta Private
Sewage Systems Standard of Practice 2015.

g) Provision of a storm water management plan. Contact
Planning and Development staff at 780-928-3983 to
discuss the requirements for your subdivision.

h) Any outstanding property taxes are to be paid on the land
proposed to be subdivided prior to registration.

i) Provision of municipal reserve in the form of money in
lieu of land. Specific amount is based on 10% of the
subject land and on the current market value. The
current market value for this property is $7,204.61 per
acre. Municipal reserve is charged at 10%, which is
$720.46 per subdivided acre. 4.39 acres times $720.46
equals $3,162.82

j)) The Developer has the option to provide a market
value appraisal of the existing parcel of land as of a
specified date occurring within the 35-day period
following the date on which the application for
subdivision approval is made in accordance to the
Municipal Government Act Section 667 (1) (a).

k) Provision of utility right-of-way as required by ATCO
Electric, Telus and Northern Lights Gas and others.

[) Provision of and negotiations for utility rights-of-way and/or
easements as required by utility companies. The
Developer shall be responsible for any line relocation or
correction costs that occur as a result of this development.
Responses from utilities companies are shown in Schedule
“C” hereto attached.

m) Mackenzie County shall not be held liable for any
concerns, issues or damages related to and/or
resulting from the water tables and any other water
problems as a result of any low land levels of the
proposed development. It is the responsibility of the
developer to ensure that adequate drainage and other
precautions are taken to avoid water seepage into the
dwellings/basement and/or flooding of the basement,
and/or any ancillary buildings.

42



MACKENZIE COUNTY

Page 11 of 12

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting

Thursday, April 6, 2017

MPC-17-04-045

MPC-17-04-046

MPC-17-04-047

MPC-17-04-048

CARRIED
d) 39-SUB-16 La Crete Golf Course

Rural Country Residential “RC3”

Plan 092 6283, Block 2, Lot 3
MOVED by Jacquie Bateman
That Subdivision Application 39-SUB-16 in the name of 1291868 Alberta
Ltd. On NW 13-106-15-W5M and Plan 092 6283, Block 2, Lot 3 be
TABLED until further discussion with the developers has commenced.
CARRIED

7. MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

a) Action List
For Information
8. IN CAMERA
a) La Crete SE Drainage Ditch
MOVED by Jacquie Bateman
That the Municipal Planning Commission move in camera at 10:43 a.m.
CARRIED
MOVED by Jacquie Bateman

That the Municipal Planning Commission move out of camera at 10:49
a.m.

CARRIED

MOVED by Jack Eccles

That the Municipal Planning Department recommend to Council to
purchase the land, adjacent to NW 3-106-15-W5M and NE 3-106-15-
W5M, for the purpose of acquiring the drainage ditch property, rather than
allow this to be provided as municipal reserve.

CARRIED

43



MACKENZIE COUNTY Page 12 of 12
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
Thursday, April 6, 2017

9. MEETING DATES

% Thursday, April 20, 2017 @ 10:00 a.m. in Fort Vermilion
% Thursday, May 4, 2017 @12:00 p.m. in Fort Vermilion
% Thursday, May 18, 2017 @ 10:00 a.m. in La Crete

10. ADJOURNMENT

Beth left the meeting at 11:00 a.m.
MPC-17-04-049 MOVED by Jack Eccles

That the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting be adjourned at 11:01
a.m.

CARRIED

These minutes were adopted this 20" day of April, 2017.

John W. Driedger, Chair

44



Agenda ltem # 7. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: April 26, 2017

Presented By: Doug Munn, Director of Community Services
Title: Fire Truck Tanker — Request for Proposal

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

Council will recall that two tenders were opened at the March 29, 2017 meeting of Council
as follows:

Fort Garry Fire Trucks $399,999.00
Rocky Mountain Phoenix $376,585.00

The next day it was revealed that a third tender had been delivered to the Fort Vermilion
Post Office prior to the tender deadline and administration determined that they did
meet the delivery requirements. (Confirmation notice attached. This issue will be
resolved for future tenders.)

The tender was opened in the presence of four staff including a Commissioner of Oath
as follows:
Asphodel $382,500.00

Administration is recommending that the bid from Asphodel be considered as a
legitimate bid as it did meet the proposal submission time requirements.

The budgeted amount for this truck is $385,000.00. Administration has reviewed the
tenders in detail and has created the attached Fire Truck Tender Matrix for review.
Note that two of the proponents submitted prices on three different vehicles and these
are included on the matrix.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

Option 1: As Rocky Mountain Phoenix met all the specifications at time of submission,
administration recommends awarding the Fire Truck Tender to Rocky Mountain Phoenix

Author: DM Reviewed by: L Racher CAO: L Racher

45



for the purchase of a Kenworth T880 Fire Truck at a price of $418,722 with additional
funds in the amount of $33,722 to come from the Emergency Service Reserve.

Option 2: As the recommended Fire Truck Tanker is not within budget, and no other
submissions met the requirements, administration could retender reducing the
specifications to a truck that does not meet the maintenance program
recommendations.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

The 2017 budget includes $385,000 for the purchase of a Tanker Fire Truck.

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION:

Administration to communicate Councils decision with all proponents.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion 1:
[0 simple Majority M Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the budget be amended to include an additional $33,722 for the Fire Truck Tanker
with funding coming from the Emergency Services Reserve.

Motion 2:
[0 simple Majority M Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the Fire Truck Tanker tender be awarded to Rocky Mountain Phoenix for the
purchase of a Kenworth T880 Fire Truck in the amount of $418,722.

Author:  D. Munn Reviewed by: L Racher CAO: L Racher

46



Fire Truck Tanker Matrix

Rocky Mountain

Rocky Mountain

Rocky Mountain

Evaluation Criteria Weight Asphodel Fort Gary Fort Gary Fort Gary Phoenix Phoenix Phoenix
Kenworth T880 | International 7600 | Freightliner 112 | Kenworth T880 | Freightliner 108 | Freightliner 114 Kenworth T880
$382,500.00 $380,100.00 $374,300.00 $399,999.00 $376,585.00 $398,488.00 $418,722.00
Sup_pller/Experlence — number of years in 10% 3 7 7 7 7 7 7
business
Suitability of EQuipment 35% 10.5* 10.5* 14* 10.5* 10.5* 17.5* 245
Delivery Date 10% 6 ! ! 6 6 6 6
Warranty 10% 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Fire Tanker Cost 35% 245 24 245 245 245 17.5 17.5
TOTAL| 100% 50 54.5 58.5 54 54 54 61
* Unsatisfactor *Did not meet Specs. *Did not meet *Did not meet * Requested Paccar
¥ And maintenance  Specs. & frame very *Light frame 500 HP - Detroit 450 Recommended

References

program

a7

light

Specs.

HP submitted

2017



48



Canada Post - Track - Personal Results Details Page 2 of 5

Date
2017/03/27

Time
18:10

Location
EDMONTON

Description
Item processed

Date
2017/03/24

Time
10:41

Location
MISSISSAUGA

Description
ltem processed

Date
2017/03/24

Time
0e:38

Location
MISSISSAUGA

Description
In transit

Additional Information

The item is travelling to its destination. It will remain in this state until it arrives at the final processing
location. Typically, the final processing scan occurs on the expected delivery date or the day before at
the local delivery facility. Check this date to know when we will attempt delivery.

https://www.canadapost.ca/cpotools/apps/Uacwper%)élalfﬁndByTrackNumber?execution=e... 3/30/2017



Canada Post - Track - Personal Results Details Page 3 of 5

Date
2017/03/24

Time
04:01

Location
MISSISSAUGA

Description
Item processed

Date
2017/03/23

Time
16:08

Location
NORWQQOD

Description
Item accepted at the Post Office

Date Time Location (?) Description E:::::itlion fli:r:?ory
2017/03/29 1313 \F/(EEI';ILION, AB Delivered
2017/03/27 18:10 il;MONTON, [tem processed
2017/03/24 10:41 BA;JSSISSAUGA' ltem processed
2017/03/24 06:38 MSSISSAUGA i transit @
2017/03/24 04:01 gd;JSSISSAUGA’ Item processed

https ://www.canadapost.ca/cpotools/apps/track/per%%'lal/ﬁndByTrackNumber?execution=e... 3/30/2017



Canada Post - Track - Personal Results Details Page 4 of 5

Retail Signatory

Date Time Location D ipti
@ escription Location Name

ltem accepted
2017/03/23 16:08 NORWOOD, ON at the Post
Office

Track another item
(/cpotools/apps/track/personal/findByTrackNumber)

Service alerts

These events may affect delivery schedules

2017-03-30

Mail delivery alert for regions of Cape Breton Island, Nova Scotia... Continue reading
(/web/en/blogs/announcements/details.page?
article=2017/03/30/regions_of_cape_bret&cattype=announcements&cat=servicealerts)

See all service alerts that might affect your delivery (/web/en/blogs/announcements/list.page?
cattype=announcements&cat=servicealerts)

Track help topics

Track shows that my item was successfully delivered, but | have not received it. What
should | do? (/web/en/kb/details.page?
article=how_to_find_a_tracke&cattype=kb&cat=receiving&subcat=tracking)

https:/fww.canadapost.ca/cpotools/apps/track/per%oilal/ﬁndByTrackNumber?execution=e. . 3/30/2017



Canada Post - Track - Personal Results Details Page 5 of 5

.

An item | sent to another country hasn't been delivered yet. Where is it?
(/web/en/kb/details.page?
article=track_international_&cattype=kb&cat=receiving&subcat=tracking)

Why hasn't my international item been delivered to me yet? (/web/en/kb/details.page?
article=delayed_parcel_inter&cattype=kb&cat=receiving&subcat=tracking)

View all (/web/en/kb/list.page?cattype=kb&cat=receiving&subcat=tracking)

https://www.canadapost.ca/cpotools/apps/track/per%cglallﬁndByTrackNumber‘?execution=e... 3/30/2017



Agenda Item # 7. b)

REQUEST FOR DECISION
Meeting: Regular Council Meeting
Meeting Date: April 26, 2017
Presented By: Grant Smith, Agricultural Fieldman
Title: Flood Control Erosion Repair — Request for Proposal

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

As per the 2017 Capital budget, Council approved $180,000.00 for the Flood Control
Erosion Repair on the NW 15-108-13-W5.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

N/A

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

2017 Capital Budget

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

N/A

COMMUNICATION:

Author:  C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:

53



RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion 1:
M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the proposals for the Flood Control Erosion Repair project be opened.

Motion 2:
M  Simple Majority [0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the Agricultural Service Board be authorized to review the proposals for the Flood
Control Erosion Repair project and award the project.

Author:  C. Sarapuk Reviewed by: CAO:

54



Agenda Item # 9. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting:
Meeting Date:
Presented By:

Title:

Regular Council Meeting
April 26, 2017
Len Racher, Chief Administrative Officer

One to One Ratio of Regulation

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL.:

See attached email from Councillor Toews for more information.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

VI Simple Majority

For discussion.

Author: C. Gabriel

[0 Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

Reviewed by:

55

CAO:




From: Ray Toews

To: Council; Len Racher; Carol Gabriel
Subject: On the agenda for 26 April
Date: April-02-17 2:25:39 PM

I would like to be on the agenda for 26 April.
Motion one
Move that for every new regulation/bylaw passed by County Council Mackenzie County we

rescind one regulation/bylaw.
Such rescinded be determined be recommended by council or by administration.

Motion two

Also that administration review all bylaws and regulations and re write to be easier to
understand.

Wildrose party is calling for a one to one ratio of regulation.
Pass one,,,,remove one.

As well Blackstone Learning sent a letter and this was one of the items in it.

Perhaps we could learn from this.

Which of the following sentences would you rather read:
As necessitated by unexpected blue box recycling expenditure increases, combined with municipal road-
infrastructure improvement expenditures resulting from repairs necessary to meet prior mandated
infrastructure maintenance levels, property taxes payable will be increased for the coming fiscal year.

or
We are increasing property taxes in order to cover the increased costs of blue box recycling and the much
needed repairs to several local roads.

You'll recognize the first example as the kind of writing that many people associate with government and other
bureaucracies — so much so, in fact, that it is sometimes called "bureaucratese".

Ray Toews CD, RM, QM

56


mailto:/O=FIRST ORGANIZATION/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=AFB1378EC27A454C8D65553D4CB0EB65-RAY T
mailto:Council@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:lracher@mackenziecounty.com
mailto:cgabriel@mackenziecounty.com

Agenda ltem # 12. a)

REQUEST FOR DECISION

Meeting: Regular Council Meeting

Meeting Date: April 26, 2017

Presented By: Karen Huff, Director of Finance
Title: 2017 Operating and Capital Budgets

BACKGROUND / PROPOSAL:

S. 242, MGA states:

1. Each council must adopt an operating budget for each calendar year.

2. A Council may adopt an interim operating budget for part of a calendar year.

3. An interim operating budget for a part of a calendar year ceases to have any
effect when the operating budget for that calendar year is adopted.

OPTIONS & BENEFITS:

The attached budget incorporates changes approved at the various meetings between
November 1, 2016 and April 11, 2017. The Municipal Taxation Revenue has been
calculated using the 2016 tax rates.

COSTS & SOURCE OF FUNDING:

SUSTAINABILITY PLAN:

COMMUNICATION:

Author:  Karen Huff Reviewed by: CAOQ:

57



RECOMMENDED ACTION:

[0 simple Majority M Requires 2/3 [0 Requires Unanimous

That the 2017 Operating and Capital Budgets be approved as presented.

Author:  Karen Huff Reviewed by: CAOQ:

58




2017 Operating & Capital
Budget

April 26, 2017




Contents:

1. 2017 Draft Operating Budget
e Operating Budget
e Non-TCA
2. 2017CashFlowRequirement
3. 2016 Carry Forward Projects
o TCA
e Non-TCA
4. 2017 New Capital Projects
o TCA
5. 2017 Municipal Taxes

6. 2017 Municipal Reserves

7. 2017 Grants to Non-Profit Organizations




2017 Dratft
Operating Budget




REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS:

Mackenzie County’s management team has drafted the 2017 operating
budget for Council’s consideration, using various assumptions including
maintenance of current levels of service (status quo), and recalculation of the
water and sewer rate, in order to reach 100% recovery rate of operating
expenses excluding TCA amortization and including long-term debt principal
and interest payments.

Significant Budget Changes
Revenue

Taxation

The 2017 linear assessment has decreased 17.31% from 2016. The non-linear
assessments numbers are received from the assessor. 2016 tax rates were used in
the calculation of the projected 2017 tax revenues. We are seeing an overall
decrease of 5.97% in municipal assessment which results in a decrease in taxation
revenue of approximately $1,555,800 in 2017.

Water Sales

Assuming the water and sewer rates remain the same in 2017, the water and
sewer revenues may increase slightly due to the projected increase in metered
water consumption.

Penalties on Taxes

The penalties on taxes are expected $101,587 higher than 2016 budget. According
to our current Tax Penalties Bylaw amended in 2013, we have four penalty runs on
January 1 (12% penalties), July 1 (6% penalties), September 1 (9% penalties), and
November 1 (12% penalties) in a yearly cycle. In addition, the estimated penalties
for the uncollectable aged accounts, for example, the accounts of Winter Petroleum
Ltd., will increase significantly in 2017.

Provincial Grants

We do not anticipate a significant change in provincial grants in 2017. Basic
Municipal Transportation Grant should be same amount of $608,694 as we received
in last year. ASB grant, MSI operating & capital grant, GTF grant, and FCSS grant
should also remain unchanged.




Expenses

Wages and Salaries
Salaries and wages are based on the approved Organizational Chart and reflection
of the increase according to AUPE negotiation.

WCB

WCB rates are calculated based on percentages of overall annual salary. The
average municipal rate is 1.19%. Our current 2016 rate is 0.78% however we are
expecting an increase of 20% for 2017. This increase is largely due to the result of
the number of claims over the pastthree years. Mackenzie County became
COR certified in spring 2016; however the savings will not be in effect until 2017
giving us a 20%reduction.

Annually the municipality receives a return on investments along with other
eligible Alberta employers and receive a surplus distribution cheque. The
following table shows our return on investments from the past four years.

2016 2015 2014

$24,811.87 $26,617.99 $27,946.50

Professional Fees
Overall change in professional fees is approximately a decrease of $66,460. The
major changes within the professional fees include the following items:

Professional fees 66,460
Admi